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NoƟce is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General MeeƟng of the members of AUROMA COKE LIMITED will be held at 
Thakur Bari, 91A, Ahiritola Street, 3rd floor, Kolkata - 700005 on Monday, 28th September, 2015 at 11.00 a.m. to transact 
the following business :                                                                            

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2015 
and the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2.  To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneraƟon. In this connecƟon, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the 
following resoluƟon as an Ordinary ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED THAT M/s. Agarwal Khemka & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (RegistraƟon No. 314133E) be and 
are hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual 
General MeeƟng unƟl the conclusion of next Annual General MeeƟng at such remuneraƟon as may be determined 
by the Board of Directors in consultaƟon with the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

3.  To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an  Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:-

 “RESOLVED THAT in compliance of SecƟon 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of the LisƟng Agreement, 
Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan (DIN:00419784) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an AddiƟonal Director w.e.f.   
20th November, 2014 to hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual General MeeƟng and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a NoƟce from a Member under SecƟon 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby 
appointed as a Director of the Company, whose office shall be liable to reƟre by rotaƟon in terms of SecƟon 152 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

4.  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modificaƟon, the following ResoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon :

 “RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of SecƟons 13 and 61 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Rules framed there under, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company 
be and is hereby increased from exisƟng Rs. 9.00 crores to Rs. 30.00 crores and accordingly exisƟng Clause V of the 
Memorandum of AssociaƟon be replaced with the following new Clause:- 

 “The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores only), divided into 
80,00,000 (Eighty Lacs) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each aggregaƟng Rs. 8,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eight 
Crores Only) and 2,20,000 (Two lac twenty thousand ) Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000/-(Rupees One Thousand) each  
aggregaƟng Rs. 22,00,00,000/= (Rupees Twenty Two Crores only) , in all aggregaƟng Rs. 30.00 crores /= (Rupees 
Thirty Crores only) with power to the Board to increase or reduce or re-organise the share capital by way of sub-
division, consolidaƟon or cancelaƟon within the purview of SecƟon 61 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from 
Ɵme to Ɵme.”     

5.  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modificaƟon, the following ResoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon:

 “RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of SecƟons 42, 55, 62 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Rules framed there under, as may be amended from Ɵme to Ɵme and the 
ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company and the regulaƟons/guidelines, if any, prescribed by any relevant authoriƟes 
from Ɵme to Ɵme, to the extent applicable and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sancƟons, as may 
be necessary and subject to such condiƟons and modificaƟons as may be considered necessary by the Board of 
Directors (hereinaŌer referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any CommiƩee thereof for 
the Ɵme being exercising the powers conferred on the Board by this ResoluƟon) or as may be prescribed or imposed 
while granƟng such approvals, permissions and sancƟons which may be agreed to by the Board, the consent of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to offer or invite to subscribe, issue and allot for an aggregate 
value not exceeding Rs. 22,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Two Crores only)CumulaƟve Redeemable Preference Shares 
(“CRPS”) of the face value of Rs. 1,000/-for cash at par on a private placement basis to such person or persons and 
in such proporƟon and on such terms and condiƟons as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the NoƟce 
convening this meeƟng.” 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER that in accordance with provisions of SecƟon 43 of the Act, the CRPS shall be non parƟcipaƟng, 
carry a preferenƟal right, vis-à-vis Equity Shares of the Company, with respect to payment of dividend and repayment 
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in case of a winding up or repayment of capital and shall carry voƟng rights as per the provisions of SecƟon 47(2) of 
the Act.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all 
such deeds, documents and wriƟngs, as it may in its absolute discreƟon deem necessary or incidental, and pay such 
fees and incur such expenses in relaƟon thereto as it may deem appropriate.”

NOTES:
1.  The explanatory statement pursuant to SecƟon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relaƟng to the 

special business, is annexed hereto.  
2.  A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO 

ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY / PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 
OF THE COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fiŌy (50) and holding in the 
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. The instrument of Proxy in order to 
be effecƟve, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 
48 hours before the commencement of the meeƟng. A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submiƩed on behalf of 
the companies, socieƟes etc., must be supported by an appropriate resoluƟon/authority, as applicable.

3.  A copy of the Annual Report for 2014-15 inter alia indicaƟng the process and manner of e-voƟng along with 
AƩendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the in the permiƩed mode. A copy of the Annual Report is also 
available for download at www.auroma.in

4.  The Register of members and share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from 22nd September, 2015 
to 28th September, 2015 for the purpose of the Annual general MeeƟng. 

5.  InstrucƟons regarding VoƟng through electronic means 
 In compliance with provisions of SecƟon 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Amendment Rules, 
2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resoluƟons proposed 
to be considered at the Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted 
through e-VoƟng Services. The facility of casƟng the votes by the members using an electronic voƟng system from a 
place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voƟng”) will be provided by NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited 
(NSDL).

 The facility for voƟng through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members aƩending the 
meeƟng who have not cast their vote by remote e-voƟng shall be able to exercise their right at the meeƟng through 
ballot paper.

 The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voƟng prior to the AGM may also aƩend the AGM but shall not 
be enƟtled to cast their vote again.

 The remote e-voƟng period commences on 25th September, 2015 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on 27th September, 2015 
(5:00 p.m.). During this period members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date of 21st  September, 2015 may cast their vote by remote e-voƟng. The remote e-voƟng 
module shall be disabled by NSDL for voƟng thereaŌer. Once the vote on a resoluƟon is cast by the member, the 
member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

 The process and manner for remote e-voƟng are as under:

 In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository ParƟcipants(s)] :

 Open email and open PDF file viz; “AUROMA” remote e-voƟng.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The 
said PDF file contains your user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voƟng. Please note that the password is an iniƟal 
password.

By Order of the Board
For AUROMA COKE LIMITED 

Place : Kolkata Prashant Tulsyan
Dated : 30th May, 2015 Whole- me Director
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 Launch internet browser by typing the URL: hƩps://www.evoƟng.nsdl.com/  

 Click on Shareholder - Login

 Put user ID and password as iniƟal password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

 Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your choice with minimum 8 digits/
characters or combinaƟon thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidenƟal.

 Home page of remote e-voƟng opens. Click on remote e-voƟng: AcƟve VoƟng Cycles.

 Select “EVEN” of “Auroma Coke Limited”.

 Now you are ready for remote e-voƟng as Cast Vote page opens.

 Cast your vote by selecƟng appropriate opƟon and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

 Upon confirmaƟon, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

 Once you have voted on the resoluƟon, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 InsƟtuƟonal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board ResoluƟon/ Authority leƩer etc. together with aƩested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the ScruƟnizer through e-mail to rajaghosh2002@gmail.
com.in with a copy marked to evoƟng@nsdl.co.in

 In case a Member receives physical copy of the NoƟce of AGM [for members whose email IDs are not registered with 
the Company/Depository ParƟcipant(s) or requesƟng physical copy] :

 IniƟal password is provided in the Annexure to this Annual Report. Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. 
(xii) above, to cast vote. 

  In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked QuesƟons (FAQs) for Members and remote e-voƟng user 
manual for Members available at the downloads secƟon of www.evoƟng.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-
990.

 If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voƟng then you can use your exisƟng user ID and password/PIN 
for casƟng your vote.

 You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used for 
sending future communicaƟon(s).

 The voƟng rights of members shall be in proporƟon to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date of 21st September, 2015.

 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company aŌer dispatch of the noƟce 
and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 21st September, 2015 may obtain the login ID and password by sending 
a request at evoƟng@nsdl.co.in 

 However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voƟng then you can use your exisƟng user ID and 
password for casƟng your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User 
Details/Password” opƟon available on www.evoƟng.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-
222-990.

 A member may parƟcipate in the AGM even aŌer exercising his right to vote through remote e-voƟng but shall not 
be allowed to vote again at the AGM.  

 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by 
the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be enƟtled to avail the facility of remote e-voƟng as well as voƟng 
at the AGM through ballot paper.

 Mr. Rajarshi Ghosh, PracƟcing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 17717 and C P No. 8921 has been appointed 
for as the ScruƟnizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scruƟnize the voƟng and remote 
e-voƟng process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resoluƟons on which voƟng is to be held, allow voƟng 
with the assistance of scruƟnizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but 
have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voƟng facility.

 The ScruƟnizer shall aŌer the conclusion of voƟng at the Annual General MeeƟng, will first count the votes cast at 
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ITEM NO. 3

In compliance of provisions of the LisƟng Agreement and SecƟon 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment of a 
woman director, the Board of Directors of the Company  has appointed Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan as an addiƟonal Director to 
hold office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng. Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan being eligible offers herself for re-
appointment as a Director of the Company. 

The Company has received a noƟce in wriƟng from a member along with the deposit of requisite amount under SecƟon 
160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing the candidature of Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan for the office of Director of the company.

InformaƟon about Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan pursuant to the LisƟng Agreement.

Date of Birth QualificaƟon ExperƟse Other Directorship No. of shares held

14.03.1976 B. Com. Business & 
AdministraƟon 

          Nil 22900 (0.36%)

Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan, being an appointee and Mr. Prashant Tulsyan, being a relaƟve are to be deemed as concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise in this ResoluƟon. None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their 
respecƟve relaƟves are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in this ResoluƟon. 

Accordingly, the Board recommends the ResoluƟon for your approval.  

ITEM NO. 4

The Board proposes to raise capital by issuing a new kind of share i.e. Preference Shares to augment its working capital 
needs and therefore, it is needed to increase the authorized share capital to Rs. 30.00 crores only and further to amend 
the Clause V of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company suitably.

Pursuant to SecƟon 13 of the Companies, Act, 2013, amendment in the Memorandum of AssociaƟon can be done only by 
consent of the shareholders. Therefore, The Directors recommend the ResoluƟon for increase in authorized share capital 
for the approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respecƟve relaƟves is concerned or interested 
in the ResoluƟon. 

ITEM NO. 5

SecƟon 62 of the Act read with the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014, provides, inter alia, that 
whenever it is proposed to increase the subscribed capital of a company by issue of further shares, such shares may be 
offered to any persons, whether or not those persons are holders of the equity shares of the company or employees of 
the company, if authorized by way of a Special ResoluƟon. 

Furthermore, as per SecƟon 42 of the Act, read with the Rules framed there under, a company offering or making an 
invitaƟon to subscribe to securiƟes, including Redeemable Preference Shares on a private placement basis, is required to 
obtain the prior approval of the Shareholders by way of a Special ResoluƟon, for each of the offers and invitaƟons.  

Explanatory Statement in respect of the Special Business pursuant to SecƟon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

the meeƟng and thereaŌer unblock the votes cast through remote e-voƟng in the presence of  at least two witnesses 
not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, 
a consolidated scruƟnizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in wriƟng, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voƟng forthwith.

 The Results declared along with the report of the ScruƟnizer shall be placed on the website of the Company www.
auroma.in and on the website of NSDL immediately aŌer the declaraƟon of result by the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in wriƟng. 

By Order of the Board
For AUROMA COKE LIMITED 

Place : Kolkata Prashant Tulsyan
Dated : 30th May, 2015 Whole- me Director
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The approval of the Members is accordingly being sought by way of a Special ResoluƟon under SecƟons 42, 55 and 62 
of the Act read with the Rules made there under, for the issue of CumulaƟve Redeemable Preference Shares (“CRPS”) 
aggregaƟng an amount not exceeding Rs. 22.00 crore and to offer and allot the CRPS on a private placement basis on the 
terms and condiƟons set out hereunder.

Given below is a statement of disclosures as required under Rule 9(3) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules, 2014 and the terms of issue of the CRPS:

1.  The CRPS shall be cumulaƟve, non-parƟcipaƟng and non-converƟble.

2.  The objecƟve of the issue is to augment working capital needs of the Company.

3.  The CRPS will be issued and offered on a private placement basis in accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 42 of 
the Act and the Rules made there under.

4.  Other terms :

Issue Size Upto a maximum of amount of Rs. 22.00 crores
Issue Price CRPs will be issued at par i.e. Rs. 1000/- per CRPS  
Offer Period To be determined by the Board
Rate of Dividend To be determined by the Board
Terms of RedempƟon RedempƟon at par in accordance with SecƟon 55 of the 

Act, out of profits available for distribuƟon as dividend or 
out of proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for the 
purpose of redempƟon

Tenure of CRPS Not exceeding 7 years with or without a put / call opƟon as 
may be determined by the Board

Expected diluƟon in equity capital upon conversion of 
preference shares

Nil, since the CRPS are non converƟble

5.  The current equity shareholding paƩern of the Company is as under:- 

Category of shareholding No. of shares % of total shares
Promoter Group  1573094 24.90
Non-Promoter Group  4745806 75.10
Total  6318900 100.00

6.  The issue of CRPS is in accordance with the provisions of the ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company. There is no 
subsisƟng default in the redempƟon of preference shares issued by the Company or in payment of dividend due on 
any preference shares issued by the Company, if any.

7.  The CRPS to be issued will not be listed at the stock exchanges.

8.  The Directors recommend the ResoluƟon for the approval of the Members of the Company. The Directors or Key 
Managerial Persons of the Company or their respecƟve relaƟves may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the 
ResoluƟon to the extent of the CRPS that may be subscribed to by them or by the companies / firms in which they are 
interested.

By Order of the Board
For AUROMA COKE LIMITED 

Place : Kolkata Prashant Tulsyan
Dated : 30th May, 2015 Whole- me Director
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To

The Members,

The Board of Directors presents 22nd Annual Report 
and the Audited Financial Results of the Company 
for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS (` in lacs)

ParƟculars 2014-15 2013-14

Total Income 1735.30 1896.62

Total Expenditure 1644.02 1645.34

Profit before Interest, 
DepreciaƟon and Tax 

91.28 251.28

Less : (1) Finance Cost 183.30 185.80

           (2) DepreciaƟon   52.10 62.19

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (144.12) 3.29

Provision for Tax 65.48 1.41

Profit/(Loss) for the year (78.64) 1.88

Amount brought forward  450.28 448.40

DepreciaƟon amorƟsed (67.71)

Amount carried to Balance 
Sheet

303.93 450.28

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

During the year under review, owing to general 
sluggishness in steel and coke sector, the volume of 
sales and realizaƟon have been adversely affected. 
The Company has earned total income of Rs.1735.30  
lacs as against Rs.1896.62 lacs registered in the 
previous year. The Company has incurred a loss aŌer 
tax of Rs. 78.63 lacs as against profit aŌer tax of 
Rs. 1.88 lacs in the previous year.

DIVIDEND

In view of the losses incurred during the year,  your 
directors do not recommend any dividend.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required under Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement 
with the Stock Exchange, a report on the Corporate 
Governance along with CerƟficate of the Auditors 
and a Report on Management Discussion and 
Analysis are annexed and forms part of this Annual 
Report.

Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS

Appointment of Independent Directors :

Mr. Alok Sawa and Mr. Abhishek Chhapolika have 
been appointed on the Board of the Company as 
Independent Director for a period of 5 years upto 
31st March, 2019. The Independent Directors have 
given declaraƟons that they meet the criteria of 
independence as laid down under SecƟon 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the LisƟng 
Agreement.

Appointment of AddiƟonal Director:

The Board has appointed Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan as an 
addiƟonal director w.e.f. 30.03.2015 to hold office 
upto the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General 
MeeƟng. Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan being eligible offers 
herself for re-appointment.

ResignaƟon of Directors:

During the year under review, Mr. Vimal Kumar 
Tulsyan, Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Tulsyan, Mr. Rajiv 
Tulsyan, Mr. Binod Kumar Singh, Mr. Nawal Kishore 
Singh, Mr. Swapan De Choudhuri have resigned 
from the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 
26.08.2014.

Number of Board MeeƟngs held :

The Board of Directors duly met eight Ɵmes on 
30.05.2014, 30.07.2014, 26.08.2014, 12.11.2014, 
20.11.2014, 11.01.2015, 14.02.2015,  31.03.2015.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted or renewed any 
Public Deposits, as defined under provisions of 
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under SecƟon 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to 
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, your Directors 
hereby confirm and state that:

a)  in the preparaƟon of the annual accounts for 
the year ended 31st March, 2015, the applicable 
accounƟng standards have been followed along 
with proper explanaƟon relaƟng to material 
departures, if any;

b)  they have selected such accounƟng policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments 
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and esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the company at the end of the year 
ended 31st March, 2015 and of the losses of the 
company for the same period;

c)  the directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng 
records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and for prevenƟng and 
detecƟng fraud and other irregulariƟes;

d)  they have prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis;

e)  they have laid down internal financial controls 
in the company that are adequate and were 
operaƟng effecƟvely.

f)  they have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and these are adequate and are operaƟng 
effecƟvely.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit CommiƩee comprises of Mr. Abhishek 
Chhapolika – Chairman, Mr. Alok Sawa and Mr. 
Prashant Tulsyan as Members. The commiƩee 
periodically discusses with the Statutory Auditors 
about the internal control system, the scope of 
audit and reviews the financial statements before 
submission thereof to the Board and ensures 
compliance of internal control system apart from 
considering any reference made to it by the Board 
of Directors.

AUDITORS

M/s Agarwal Khemka & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, reƟres as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng 
and are eligible for re-appointment. As required 
under SecƟon 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has received a wriƩen confirmaƟon from 
them to the effect that their reappointment, if made, 
would be subject to the condiƟons as prescribed 
under Rule 4 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules 2014 and that they are not disqualified 
from being appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The observaƟons of the Auditors in their Report read 
with relevant notes on the Accounts, as annexed 
are self explanatory and they do not call for further 
explanaƟon in this Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The provisions of SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 relaƟng to the corporate social responsibility 
are not applicable as the Company does not fall in 
any of the criteria menƟoned in that SecƟon.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

According to the provision of secƟon 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Secretarial 
Audit Report submiƩed by Mr. Rajarshi Ghosh, 
Company Secretary in PracƟce is annexed herewith 
as Annexure - A.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is 
annexed herewith as Annexure-B.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Board of Directors have formulated and implemented 
a risk management policy for the company. The 
Board has been addressing various risks impacƟng 
the Company including idenƟficaƟon therein of 
elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the 
Board may threaten the existence of the company.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In pursuance to the provisions of SecƟon 177 (9) & 
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of 
the LisƟng Agreement, a Vigil Mechanism Policy for 
directors and employees to report genuine concerns 
has been established.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION, ETC.

The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee of the 
Company has framed a suitable policy on Directors’ 
appointment which idenƟfies the qualificaƟons, 
posiƟve aƩributes, independence of the Directors. 
The CommiƩee has also recommended to the Board 
a Policy on remuneraƟon for the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees.
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PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A.  ConservaƟon of Energy : The Coke Ovens 
are designed in such a way that considerable 
amount of energy is saved.

B.  Technology AbsorpƟon : The present technology 
used in manufacturing process is Indigenous. 
The Company has not carried out any research 
and development acƟviƟes during the year.

C.  The foreign exchange earnings and outgo : Nil 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related Party TransacƟons that were entered during 
the financial year were on an arms length basis 
and were in the ordinary course of business. The 
Company has not entered into material related party 

which require disclosures under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the lisƟng agreement. 

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
covered under the provisions of SecƟon 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the 
Financial Statements.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors place on record their graƟtude to the 
bankers, media, Government and other agencies for 
their assistance, cooperaƟon and encouragement 
extended to the Company. The Directors also wish to 
place on record their sincere thanks and appreciaƟon 
for the conƟnuing support and unsƟnted efforts 
of investors and employees during the year under 
review.

By Order of the Board
For AUROMA COKE LIMITED 

Place : Kolkata Prashant Tulsyan
Dated : 30th May, 2015 Whole- me Director
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To the Members,
AUROMA COKE LIMITED

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate pracƟces by Auroma Coke Limited (hereinaŌer called the company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluaƟng the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. Based on my verificaƟon of the Company’s books, papers, 
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the informaƟon 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporƟng made hereinaŌer:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to provisions of :

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)  The SecuriƟes Contracts (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟons made thereunder to the extent 
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)  The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (SEBI Act)

 (a)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares & Takeovers) RegulaƟons,   

              2011.

 (b)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 1992.

 (c)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2009

       (d)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock OpƟon Scheme and Employees Stock 
OpƟon Purchase Scheme), Guidelines, 1999.

       (e)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes (RegulaƟons, 2008

 (f)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
RegulaƟons, 1993.

 (g)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (De-lisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2009.

 (h)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 1998.

(vi)  All other statutes and laws as may be applicable specifically to the company.

Annexure - A

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

[Pursuant to secƟon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and RemuneraƟon Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following :-

i)  Secretarial Standards issued by the InsƟtute of company Secretaries of India

ii)  The lisƟng agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd. during the year under review, the 
Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
menƟoned above to the extent they are applicable. As reported by the management, , the Company 
could not appoint Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary as per the Companies Act, 2013.

I further report that :-

•  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted with proper balance of ExecuƟve Directors, 
Non-ExecuƟve Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composiƟon of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 
of the Act.

•  Adequate noƟce is given to all directors to schedule the Board MeeƟngs, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
informaƟon and clarificaƟons on the agenda items before the meeƟng and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon 
at the meeƟng.

•   Majority decision is carried through while the dissenƟng members’ views are captured and recorded as 
part of the minutes. consƟtuted

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with its size 
and operaƟons to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and guidelines.

   

Place : Kolkata Rajarshi Ghosh 
Date : 30th May, 2015 C P No. : 8921
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Annexure - B

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on Financial Year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to SecƟon 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

1. CIN L23101WB1993PLC060154

2. RegistraƟon Date 17.09.1993

3. Name of the Company Auroma Coke Limited

4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by shares

5. Address of the Registered office  & contact 
details

‘ShanƟniketan’
8 Camac Street, Suit No. 706
Kolkata - 700017
Phone - 033-22822310

6. Whether listed company Listed

7. Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Niche Technologies Private Limited
D-511, Bagree Market, 5th Floor,
71, B.R.B. Basu Road, Kolkata - 700001
Phone : 033-2235 7270 / 7271

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business acƟviƟes contribuƟng 
 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

SI.
No.

Name and DescripƟon of main 
products / services

NIC Code of the 
Product/service

%  to total turnover 
of the company

1. Coal & Coke 27040030 100

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI. 
No.

Name of Company CIN/GLN Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
secƟon

1. ACM Fuels Ltd. U23200WB1989PTC104978 Associate -- 2 (6)

2. Smart Dealers Pvt. Ltd. U51909WB1996PTC082102 Associate -- 2 (6)

3. ACM Finvests Pvt. Ltd. U65993WB1988PTC045003 Associate -- 2 (6)
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year [As on 01/04/2014]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31/03/2015]

% Change 
during the 

year     Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoter's
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 987482 – 987482 15.627 987482 0 987482 15.627 0.000
b) Central Govt – – – – – – – – –
c) State Govt(s) – – – – – – – – –
d) Bodies Corp. 585612 – 585612 9.268 585612 0 585612 9.268 0.000
e) Banks / FI – – – – – – – – –
f) Any Other – – – – – – – – –
Sub-total (A)(1) 1573094 – 1573094 24.895 1573094 0 1573094 24.895 0.000
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals – – – – – – – – –
b) Other - Individuals – – – – – – – – –
c) Bodies Corporate – – – – – – – – –
d) Banks / Financial 
InsƟtuƟons

– – – – – – – – –

e) Any Other – – – – – – – – –
Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A)

1573094 0 1573094 24.895 1573094 0 1573094 24.895 0.000

B. Public 
Shareholding
(1) InsƟtuƟons
a) Mutual Funds 0 250000 250000 3.956 0 250000 250000 3.956 0.000
b) Banks / FI 14300 0 14300 0.226 14300 0 14300 0.226 0.000
c) Central Govt – – – – – – – – –
d) State Govt(s) – – – – – – – – –
e) Venture Capital 
Funds

– – – – – – – – –

f) Insurance 
Companies

– – – – – – – – –

g) FIIs – – – – – – – – –
h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

– – – – – – – – –

i) Others (specify) – – – – – – – – –
Sub-total (B) (1) 14300 250000 264300 4.183 14300 250000 264300 4.183 0.000
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year [As on 01/04/2014]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31/03/2015]

% Change 
during the 

year     Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

(2) Non-InsƟtuƟons
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 1162649 1139600 2302249 36.434 1161393 1139600 2300993 36.414 -0.020
ii) Overseas – – – – – – – – –
b) Individuals
i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh

247847 288006 535853 8.480 254232 285607 539839 8.543 0.063

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 1 lakh

91573 1452100 1543673 24.429 91271 1452100 1543371 24.425 -0.004

c) Others (HUF) – – – – – – – – –
Non Resident 
Individual

49531 42200 91731 1.452 47428 42200 89628 1.418 -0.034

Overseas Corporate 
Bodies

– – – – – – – – –

Foreign NaƟonals – – – – – – – – –
Clearing Members 8000 0 8000 0.127 7675 0 7675 0.121 -0.006
Trusts – – – – – – – – –
Foreign Companies – – – – – – – – –
Sub-total (B) (2) 1559600 2921906 4481506 70.922 1561999 2919507 4481506 70.922 0.000
Total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1) + (B)(2)

1573900 3171906 4745806 75.105 1576299 3169507 4745806 75.105 0.000

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

– – – – – – – – –

Grand Total (A+B+C) 3146994 3171906 6318900 100.000 3149393 3169507 6318900 100.000 0.000
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ii)  Shareholding of Promoters 

Sl. No. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year as on 01/04/2014

Shareholding at the end of the year as 
on 31/03/2015

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 ACM FINVESTS PVT. LTD. 231200 3.659 0.000 231200 3.659 0.000 0.000
2 ANAMIKA TULSYAN 24100 0.381 0.000 24100 0.381 0.000 0.000
3 NIRMALA TULSYAN 71000 1.124 0.000 71000 1.124 0.000 0.000
4 NISHA TULSYAN 121600 1.924 0.000 121600 1.924 0.000 0.000
5 PRASHANT TULSYAN 154800 2.450 0.000 154800 2.450 0.000 0.000
6 RAJIV TULSYAN 52800 0.836 0.000 52800 0.836 0.000 0.000
7 RANJANA TULSYAN 78400 1.241 0.000 78400 1.241 0.000 0.000
8 SANJEEV KUMAR TULSYAN 113982 1.804 0.000 113982 1.804 0.000 0.000
9 SMART DEALERS PRIVATE LIMITED 235512 3.727 0.000 235512 3.727 0.000 0.000

10 SRS HOTEL PRIVATE LTD 118900 1.882 0.000 118900 1.882 0.000 0.000
11 VAIBHAV TULSYAN 98000 1.551 0.000 98000 1.551 0.000 0.000
12 VIBHA TULSYAN 22900 0.362 0.000 22900 0.362 0.000 0.000
13 VIMAL KUMAR TULSYAN 249900 3.955 0.000 249900 3.955 0.000 0.000

T O T A L 1573094 24.895 0.000 1573094 24.895 0.000 0.000

(iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
1 ACM FINVESTS PVT. LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year 231200 3.659
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 231200 3.659

2 ANAMIKA TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 24100 0.381
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 24100 0.381

3 NIRMALA TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 71000 1.124
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 71000 1.124

4 NISHA TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 121600 1.924
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 121600 1.924
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Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
5 PRASHANT TULSYAN

a) At the Begining of the Year 154800 2.450
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 154800 2.450

6 RAJIV TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 52800 0.836
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 52800 0.836

7 RANJANA TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 78400 1.241
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 78400 1.241

8 SANJEEV KUMAR TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 113982 1.804
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 113982 1.804

9 SMART DEALERS PRIVATE LIMITED
a) At the Begining of the Year 235512 3.727
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 235512 3.727

10 SRS HOTEL PRIVATE LTD
a) At the Begining of the Year 118900 1.882
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 118900 1.882

11 VAIBHAV TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 98000 1.551
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 98000 1.551

12 VIBHA TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 22900 0.362
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 22900 0.362

13 VIMAL KUMAR TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 249900 3.955
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 249900 3.955
T O T A L 1573094 24.895 1573094 24.895
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(iv)  Shareholding PaƩern of top ten Shareholders
 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
1 BANK OF INDIA A/C BOI MUTUAL FUND

a) At the Begining of the Year 250000 3.956
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 250000 3.956

2 DOLPHIN RESIDENCY PRIVATE LIMITED
a) At the Begining of the Year 263500 4.170
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 263500 4.170

3 GAURAV TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 250000 3.956
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 250000 3.956

4 GURUKRIPA DEALERS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 315000 4.985
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 315000 4.985

5 NAVIN K. TULSYAN
a) At the Begining of the Year 194100 3.072
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 194100 3.072

6 PRECIOUS MINERAL TECHNO PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 275000 4.352
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 275000 4.352

7 SARANYA PROJECTS PVT LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 312900 4.952
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 312900 4.952

8 SUBHLABH PROJECTS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 220000 3.482
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 220000 3.482

9 VISHWAKARMA TECHNO PRIVATE LIMITED
a) At the Begining of the Year 300000 4.748
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 300000 4.748
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Sl. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

CumulaƟve Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
10 ZEBRA COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year 360000 5.697
b) Changes during the year     [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 360000 5.697
T O T A L 2740500 43.370 2740500 43.370

V. INDEBTEDNESS
 Indebtedness  of the Company  including  interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

      (` In crore)

    Secured Loans   
 excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans     

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
Financial Year
i)   Principal Amount 11.95 1.45 – 13.40
ii)  Interest due but not paid    0.15 0.22 –   0.37
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
Total (i+ ii + iii) 12.10 1.67 – 13.77
Change in indebtedness during the 
Financial Year
i)   Principal Amount -0.05 - 1.28 – -1.33
ii)  Interest due but not paid -0.02 - 0.16 – -0.18
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
Net Change -0.07 -1.44 – -1.51
Indebtedness at the end of the 
Financial Year
i)   Principal Amount 11.90 0.17 – 12.07
ii)  Interest due but not paid    0.13 0.06 –    0.19
iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –
Total (i + ii + iii)  12.03 0.23 – 12.26

VI.    REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL                                  
 A.  RemuneraƟon to Managing Director, Whole-Ɵme Directors and/or Manager                         In Rupees

Sl.
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

S K Tulsyan Rajiv Tulsyan Prashant Tulsyan
1 Gross salary 350806 350806    870000
2 Others – – –
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 B.  RemuneraƟon to other directors (Fee for aƩending meeƟngs of the Board/ commiƩees)

Sl.
No.

Name of Director Total Amount
(`)

1. Vimal Kumar Tulsyan 15000
2. Nawal Kishore Singh 15000
3. Binod Kumar Singh 15000
4. Alok Kumar Sawa 30000
5. Swapan De Chaudhury 15000
6. Abhshek Kumar Chhapolika 30000
7. Vibha Tulsyan 20000

 C. RemuneraƟon to Key Managerial Personnel – The Company has no Key Managerial Personnel.                                         

VII)  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

 There are no penalƟes / punishment / compounding of offences under the Companies Act, 2013 against 
the Company / Directors / Other officers in default during the period under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015.

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and trading 
of coal and coke. Metallurgical Coke, being a derivaƟve 
of coking coal is the main source of heat and is also 
the reducing agent required to facilitate the conversion 
of metallurgical ores into metal during the smelƟng 
process. Coke is mainly consumed in Steel industry, 
Cement industry, furnaces for small casƟngs and gas 
producers among others.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

Thrust on development of infrastructure and 
manufacturing by the current government is likely to 
increase steel demand in the country. Coking Coal and 
Iron Ore are prime ingredients for producƟon of steel. 
Hence, it can be understood that the demand for coking 
coal is due to improve in the coming years subject to 
favorable impetus from the government. Coke is also 
extensively used in the Foundries, Ferro Alloys, Steel 
and Chemicals industries. The Company foresees good 
scope in coke business.

Global Demand for coking coal is expected to increase 
in the coming years though there is a dearth in demand 
at present. This will provide an excellent opportunity 
for the Company to grow. Although, fluctuaƟon in 
demand in global steel industry or increase in use of 
other mode of steel Industry ie. Electric ARC furnace 
by steel industry or indiscriminate imports from China 
might act as a threat to the met coke Industry in India.

RISKS & CONCERNS

The prospects of the met coke industry are correlated 
with the prospects of the steel industry. Any adverse 
market condiƟons like global recession, eurozone 
crisis and severe compeƟƟon from old and established 
players are the main concerns of the Company. 
The latest issue of dumping of met coke by Chinese 
manufacturers is a concern for the Company.

OUTLOOK

Though the current outlook of coke industry is weak 
due to weak economic environment, the demand of 
coke in the year to come is expected to increase due 
to conƟnuing IndustrializaƟon and growth in the steel 
sector in the country. The biggest opportunity lies in 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report
the growing middle class in India and its burgeoning 
demand. Also indiscriminate dumping by Chinese coke 
manufacturers is a cause of grave concern.

HUMAN RESOURCES

During the year, the Company maintained harmonious 
and cordial relaƟons with its employees. The Company 
has taken steps to create a sense of belongingness in 
the minds of the employees, which in turn iniƟates 
them to give their maximum contribuƟon while gearing 
them to face the challenges in the compeƟƟve business 
environment and to achieve the desired goals

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has developed adequate internal control 
system commensurate to its size and business. The 
report of internal auditors is submiƩed to the Audit 
CommiƩee, which further review the adequacy of the 
Internal Control System. The Internal control system 
is supplemented by an extensive programme of 
internal audits, review by management, guidelines and 
procedures.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance has been discussed in the 
Directors’ report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The report may contain statements that the Company 
believes are or may be considered to be “forward 
looking statement” that describes our objecƟves, 
plan or goals. All these forward looking statements 
are subject to certain risks and uncertainƟes including 
but not limited to Government acƟon, economic 
development, risks inherent in the Company’s growth 
strategy and other factors that could cause the actual 
results to differ materially from those contemplated by 
the relevant forward looking statements. 
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INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance is a mulƟ faceted subject 
and based on principles of integrity, fairness, equity, 
transparency, accountability, and commitment to 
values. It is company’s firm belief that good Corporate 
Governance is the back bone of the enƟre business 
organisaƟon and is a key to success of business. 

“Auroma” has been pracƟcing the principles of good 
Corporate Governance over the years and recognizes 
that good Corporate Governance is a conƟnuing 
exercise and reiterates its commitment to pursue 
highest standards of

Corporate Governance. Keeping in view the Company’s 
size, complexity, operaƟons, corporate tradiƟons and 
in accordance with Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement 
with the Stock Exchanges, the report containing 
the details of governance systems and processes at 
“Auroma Coke Limited” is as under :

1.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 A.  ComposiƟon of Board

  The Board of the Company has well structured 
with adequate blend of professional, indepen-
dent and Promoter  Directors. The Board of 
Directors of the Company consists of following 
persons as on 31.3.2015.

  Name Category

 1. Mr. Prashant Tulsyan  Whole-Ɵme Director - 
   Promoter

 2. Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan Non-execuƟve - 
   Promoter

 3. Mr. Alok Sawa  Non-execuƟve - 
   Independent 

 4. Mr. Abhishek Chhapolika Non-execuƟve - 
   Independent

 B.   AƩendance of each director at the Board 
MeeƟngs and last Annual General MeeƟng

Name of the Director AƩendance No. of 
Directorship 

in public 
limited 

companies

Board 
MeeƟngs

Last 
AGM

Mr. Prashant Tulsyan 8 Yes Nil

Name of the Director AƩendance No. of 
Directorship 

in public 
limited 

companies

Board 
MeeƟngs

Last 
AGM

Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan 4 No Nil

Mr. Alok Sawa 6 No Nil

Mr. Abhishek Chhapolika 6 No Nil

Mr. Vimal Kumar Tulsyan, Mr. Rajiv Tulsyan, Mr. Sanjeev 
Tulsyan, Mr. Nawal Kishore Singh, Mr. Binod Kumar 
Singh, Mr. Swapan De Chaudhury aƩended three Board 
meeƟngs each during their tenure. 

Board meeƟngs were held during the year on 
30.05.2014, 30.07.2014, 26.08.2014, 12.11.2014, 
20.11.2014, 11.01.2015, 14.02.2015 and 31.03.2015.

2.  Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board of 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel

 The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as 
adopted by Board of Directors is equally applicable 
to all the Board members whether execuƟve 
or non execuƟve and to the members of senior 
Management. This code is comprehensive enough 
and adopted for the effecƟve and responsible 
conduct of the operaƟons of the company.  The 
Code has been circulated to all the Board Members 
and to the senior management personnel of the 
Company and the compliance of the same has 
been affirmed by them annually.

3.  CommiƩees of the Board

 The Board has consƟtuted the commiƩees of 
Directors to deal with maƩers which need quick 
decision and Ɵmely monitoring of the acƟviƟes.. 
The Board commiƩees are as follows :

 A. Audit CommiƩee : All the members of the 
Audit CommiƩee possess financial/accounƟng 
knowledge. The commiƩee comprises of (1) Mr. 
Abhishek Chhapolika – Independent (2) Mr. Alok 
Sawa – Independent (3) Mr. Prashant Tulsyan – 
whole-Ɵme Director. 

 ObjecƟves: The Audit commiƩee assists the Board 
in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and 

Corporate Governance Report
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integrity of the accounƟng audiƟng, and reporƟng 
pracƟces of the company and its compliance with 
the legal and regulatory requirements. 

 Terms of Reference : The role and terms of 
reference of the Audit CommiƩee covers the 
areas mentoned under Clause 49 of the LisƟng 
Agreement and Companies Act, 2013. Following 
are some of brief terms of reference

 i)  Overseeing of Company’s financial reporƟng 
process and disclosure of its financials 
informaƟon to ensure that the financial 
statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

 ii)  Recommending the Board about 
appointment, re-appointment, and if required 
the replacement or removal of the Statutory 
Auditor, and fixaƟon of audit fees.

 iii) Reviewing the financial statements with 
management before submission to the Board 
for approval focusing primarily on the crucial 
points under consideraƟon.

 iv)  Reviewing the Internal Control System and 
internal Audit results.

 v)  Review with the management, quarterly 
financial statements of the accounts.

 vi)  Reviewing with the management, performance 
of statutory auditors and internal auditors.

 vii)  Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit 
funcƟons. 

 viii) To review the maƩers reported under Whistle 
Blower Policy.

The CommiƩee met four Ɵmes  during the year on 
30.05.2014, 26.08.2014, 12.11.2014 and 14.02.2015.

Name of member  Category No. of
MeeƟng
aƩended

Abhishek Chhapolika Independent 3 

Alok Sawa Independent 4

Prashant Tulsyan Promoter 3

Mr. V.K. Tulsyan, Mr. Binod Kumar Singh and Mr. Nawal 
Kishore Singh, who ceased to be directors during the 
year, have aƩended one commiƩee meeƟng each.

NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

The remuneraƟon commiƩee of the Board comprises 
three Directors, namely,

1.  Mrs. Vibha Vibha Tulsyan 

2. Mr. Abhishek Chhapolika

3. Mr. Alok Sawa

Terms of Reference

The NominaƟon and RremuneraƟon commiƩee has 
been consƟtuted to recommend/review and approve 
the remuneraƟon of the ExecuƟve & Non-ExecuƟve 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel, based on 
their Performance and defined assessment criteria and 
subject to the consent of the shareholders, wherever 
necessary. One meeƟng of the NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee was held during the year. 
Details of remuneraƟon paid/payable to the execuƟve 
and non-execuƟve directors are given in the Directors 
Report. 

C.  Stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee

The Stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee of the Board 
comprises of two Directors, namely, Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan 
(Chairperson)  and Mr. Prashant Tulsyan.

The CommiƩee monitors and redresses the complaints 
of the shareholders relaƟng to share transfer, non-
receipt of Annual Report, and other related grievances. 
The commiƩee oversees the performance of the 
Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, and 
recommends measures for overall improvement in the 
quality of investor services. 

There are no investors’ grievances pending as on 31st 
March, 2015.
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4.  General Body MeeƟngs

 A.  Annual General MeeƟng : 

  Details of the last three Annual general MeeƟngs:-

Year LocaƟon  Date & Time Special ResoluƟon Passed

2013-14 Suite No. 706, ShanƟniketan Building,
8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

28.09.2014 at
9.00 a.m.

Yes
(1) Borrowing powers to the 
Board
(2) Power to the Board to 
create mortgage, lien, etc.  on 
the assets of the Company 

2012-13 Suite No. 706, ShanƟniketan Building,
8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

25.07.2013 at 
11.00 a.m.

No special ResoluƟon passed

2011-12 Suite No. 706, ShanƟniketan Building,
8, Camac Street, Kolkata-700017

22.09.2012 at
11.30 a.m.

No special ResoluƟon passed

 B.  Special ResoluƟon passed through Postal 
Ballot:

  Neither at the last Annual General MeeƟng 
nor at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng 
any special resoluƟon was passed/ proposed 
to be passed through postal ballot.

5.  Disclosures :

 A.  Related Party Disclosures:

  No transacƟon of material nature that may 
have potenƟal conflict with the interests of 
the Company at large has been executed/ 
entered with promoters, directors or 
management and their relaƟves etc. 
AƩenƟon of the members is drawn towards 
the disclosures of transacƟons with the 
related parƟes as detailed in Note 1.12 
forming part of the Financial Statements. All 
related party transacƟons are negoƟated on 
arm’s length basis and intended to further 
the Interest of the Company.

 B.  Non-compliances/ penalty or strictures

  There has been no instance of non 
compliance by the Company on any 
maƩer related to Capital Market during 
the last three years and hence no penalty 
or strictures have been imposed on the 

Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or 
any statutory authority the last three years 
and hence no penalty or strictures have 
been imposed on the Company by the Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority 

 C.  Compliances of the corporate governance

  The Company has complied with the 
mandatory compliances of the corporate 
governance as per the LisƟng Agreement. 

6.  Means of CommunicaƟon :

 A Ɵmely disclosure of consistent, comparable, 
relevant and reliable informaƟon on corporate 
financial performance is at the core of good 
governance.

 a)  The quarterly / yearly results in the format 
prescribed by the Stock Exchange in India 
are approved and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors within the sƟpulated me 
and sent immediately to all Stock Exchanges 
on which the company’s equity shares are 
listed.

 b)  Quarterly un - audited financial results 
are generally published in Eco of India in 
English, and Arthik Lipi in vernacular, all 
published from Kolkata.

 c)  Annual Report containing, inter-alia, 
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Audited Annual Accounts, Director’s Report, Auditor’s Report and other important informaƟon are 
circulated to the members and others enƟtled thereto. The Management Discussion & Analysis 
Report forms part of the Annual Report.

7.  General Shareholders InformaƟon:

 z Date, Time and Venue of AGM : 28.09.2015 at 11 a.m. at Thakur Bari, 
    91A, Ahiritola Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700005

  z Book Closure Period :   22.09.2015 to 28.09.2015 

 z Dividend payment date :  No dividend is recommended

 z LisƟng on Stock Exchanges :  BSE Limited. Stock Code : AUROCOK

 z ISIN No. of the Company :  INE662I01012

z Stock Market Data Month High Low Month High Low

April, 14      8.10 8.03 October, 14 8.49 7.37

May, 14       8.43 8.39 November, 14 8.70 6.10

June,  14 12.06 8.39 December, 14 5.85 3.10

July, 14 11.95 10.55  January, 15 3.28 3.16

August,  14 12.10 10.93 February, 15 3.34 2.61

September, 14 10.39 8.93 March,  15 3.31 2.87

 z Registrar and Transfer Agents : Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
    71, B. R. B. Basu Road
    D-511, Bagree Market, Kolkata-700 001
    Phone- 033-2234 3576, Fax: 033-2215 6823

 z Plant LocaƟon : G. T. Road, Govindpur, PO - KG Ashram, Dhanbad – 828 109

 z Investor Correspondence : Investor correspondence may be addressed to :
    Company Secretary
    Auroma Coke Limited
    Suite No.706, ShanƟ Niketan Building,
    8, Camac Street, Kolkata - 700017
    Phone : 033 - 2282 5759

 z Share Transfer System : Presently, Shares lodged with the Company or Share Transfer 
Agent for transfer are processed and registered within a period 
of 10 to 15 days from the date of receipt, provided all documents 
are complete, proper and valid in all respects. The Board has 
delegated the authority for approving transfer; transmission 
etc. of the Company’s securiƟes to the shareholders/investors 
grievance commiƩee. In this regard, the CommiƩee meets every 
fortnight to approve the transfers and transmission and maƩers. A 
Summary of transfer / transmission of securiƟes of the Company 
so approved by Managing Director or Company Secretary is placed 
at every Board MeeƟng.
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z Shareholding PaƩern as on 31.3.2015 :

Category No.  of Shares % to Total Shares

Promoters 1573094 24.90

Mutual Fund and Financial insƟtuƟons 264300 4.18

NRIs 89628 1.42

Bodies corporate 2300993 36.41

Individuals 2090885 33.09

Total 6318900 100.00

z DistribuƟon of Shareholding as on 31.03.2015 :

Number of No. of Shares 
holders

% to Total Share 
holders

Total No. Shares % of Holding of 
Shares

1-500 432 53.14 98506 1.56

501-1000 222 27.30 187494 2.97

1001-5000 106 13.03 261838 4.14

5001- 10000 12 1.48 99297 1.57

10001-50000 19 2.34 1079471 17.08

50001-above 22 2.71 4592294 72.68

TOTAL 813 100.00 6318900 100.00

z DematerializaƟon of Shares:

 The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has included company’s scrip in compulsory demat 
seƩlement for all type of investors. Thus the dealing in company’s equity share can be in demat form 
only. To facilitate the  Holding and trading of securiƟes in electronic form, your company has established 
connecƟvity with the NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited. As on March 31, 2015, a total of 3169507 equity shares comprising 50.16% of the total equity 
capital of the company have been dematerialized.

z Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants and ConverƟble Bonds, Conversion Date and likely impact on 
Equity:

 The company has never issued GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any converƟble instruments.

By Order of the Board
For AUROMA COKE LIMITED 

Place : Kolkata Prashant Tulsyan
Dated : 30th May, 2015 Whole- me Director



Annual Report 2014-15

25

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members,
Auroma Coke Limited

We have examined the compliance of condiƟon of Corporate Governance by Auroma Coke Limited for the 
year ended 31st March, 2015 as sƟpulated in Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement of the said company with 
the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examinaƟon was limited to a review of the procedures and implementaƟon thereof adopted by the company 
for ensuring the compliance of the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated in the said clause. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟon given to us, and based on 
the representaƟon made by the Directors and Management, we cerƟfy that the company has complied with 
the condiƟons of corporate governance as sƟpulated in Clause 49 of the above-menƟoned LisƟng Agreement.

On the basis of share transfer register and other records produced before us, we state that no investor 
grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained 
by the shareholders’ CommiƩee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 
the efficiency or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For AGARWAL KHEMKA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

A. K. Agarwal
Date : 30th May, 2015 Proprietor
Place : Kolkata Membership No. 52791
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To the Members of 
Auroma Coke Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Auroma Coke Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory 
informaƟon.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩers stated in secƟon 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparaƟon of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial posiƟon, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, including the AccounƟng Standards specified under SecƟon 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other irregulariƟes; selecƟon and 
applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; making judgments and esƟmates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the 
preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.    

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken 
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounƟng and audiƟng standards and maƩers which are required 
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng specified under SecƟon 143(10) of the 
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 
preparaƟon of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether 
the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporƟng and the 
operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluaƟng the appropriateness of accounƟng 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounƟng esƟmates made by the Company’s Directors, as well 
as evaluaƟng the overall presentaƟon of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the informaƟon required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 

Independent Auditors’ Report
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fair view in conformity with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31 March 2015 and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of MaƩers

We draw aƩenƟon to the following maƩers in the Notes to the financial statements:

Note No. 1.12  of the financial statements which, describes the uncertainty related to the outcome of the case 
filed against the company by CBI and suspension of supply of raw material under FSA by main supplier BCCL 
and its consequences.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these maƩers.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.   As required by the Companies(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-secƟon (11) of secƟon 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the maƩers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2.   As required by SecƟon 143(3)of the Act, we report that :

 a.  We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟon which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

 b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as appears from our examinaƟon of those books.

 c.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

 d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the AccounƟng Standards specified 
referred to in secƟon 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

 e.  On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as on March 31, 2015, taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors  is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from 
being appointed as a director in  terms of SecƟon 164(2) of the Act. 

 f. With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon 
and according to the explanaƟons given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on its financial posiƟon in its 
financial statements – Refer Note 1.12 to the financial statements;

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses; 

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund by the Company.   

 For AGARWAL KHEMKA & ASOCIATES
 Chartered Accountants
 (RegistraƟon Number : 314133E)

 A. K. Agarwal
Place : Kolkata Proprietor
Date : 30th day of May, 2015 Membership Number : 052791
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Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the 
members of the company on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015, we report that :

i. We have been informed that the Company is in the process of preparing fixed assets register. Physical 
verificaƟon of assets has been conducted on selecƟve basis and no discrepancies were noƟced during 
such verificaƟon. In our opinion this method of physical verificaƟon is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

ii. (a)  We have been informed that the management has conducted physical verificaƟon of inventories at 
the year end and no material discrepancies have been noƟced on such verificaƟon as compared to 
book records. 

 (b) The procedures followed for such verificaƟon are reasonable in relaƟon to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its business.

 (c) The company is maintaining proper records of inventory.

iii. (a)  The company has granted unsecured loans to the bodies corporate covered in the register 
maintained under secƟon 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

 (b)  There is no sƟpulaƟon regarding repayment of principal and interest and they are repayable 
on demand, and the company is receiving the principal and interest as and when demanded. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

 (c)  There are no overdue amounts of more than rupees one lakh in respect of the loans granted to the 
bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under secƟon 189 of the Act. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business for 
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the course 
of audit, we have not observed any conƟnuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control 
system.

v. We have been informed that the Company has not accepted any deposits as defined under Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 read along with other noƟficaƟons/Rules issued from Ɵme to Ɵme. 
Therefore the provisions of Clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

vi. The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under secƟon 148(1) of the 
Act for the company.

vii. We have been informed that the company is generally regular in deposiƟng undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, investor educaƟon and protecƟon fund, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, 
custom duty, service tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authoriƟes, wherever 
applicable, except with some delays. There has been delay in deposi ng excise duty, service tax, Tax 
deducted at Source, Employees State Insurance, Electricity duty and in one case of income tax. However, 
there are no arrears of outstanding liabiliƟes as at the end of the year for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable, except in case of Sales Tax ` 1.00 lacs, Electricity Duty ` 0.16 
lacs and Income tax ` 0.64 lacs. 

 There are demands in respect of sales tax dues, which are disputed by the company but the said demands 
have been adjusted by the department from the input credit available with them. The company is yet 
to file revision peƟƟon / appeals in respect of demands adjusted from input credit or claim for input 
credit not admiƩed amounƟng to ` 23.56 lacs with the appropriate authoriƟes for the year 2006-07 to 
2010-11.

Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report
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According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the following dues of sales tax / VAT has not 
been deposited by the company on account of disputes:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where dispute  
Statute dues involved which relate is pending

JVAT Act, 2005  Tax & Penalty    ` 43.76 2007-08 Commissioner of Sales Tax
JVAT Act, 2005  Tax & Penalty    `   2.40 2008-09 Commissioner of Sales Tax

viii. The company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year. The losses incurred 
have been adjusted with the balance available in Profit & Loss Account. The company has incurred 
cash loss during the financial year covered by our audit. No cash loss was incurred in the immediately 
preceding financial year.

ix. The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank or financial insƟtuƟons. The company 
has not raised any amount by way of Debentures. 

x. The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from any bank or financial 
insƟtuƟons.

xi. Term loans raised were applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained. 

xii. Based upon the audit procedures performed and informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, we report 
that no fraud on or by the company has been noƟced or reported during the year during the course of 
our audit.

 For AGARWAL KHEMKA & ASOCIATES
 Chartered Accountants
 (RegistraƟon Number: 314133E)

 A. K. Agarwal
Place : Kolkata Proprietor
Date : 30th day of May, 2015 Membership Number : 052791
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015

ParƟculars
Note 
No.

 As at 31st 
March, 2015 (`) 

 As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`) 

I. EQUITY & LIABILITIES 
(1) Shareholders' Funds

[a] Share Capital 2  66,251,500  66,251,500 
[b] Reserves & Surplus 3  30,673,433  96,924,933  45,132,876 111,566,779 

(2) Share ApplicaƟon Money
pending allotment

1.11 252,400,000 252,400,000 

(3) Non current LiabiƟes
[a] Long Term Borrowing 4 120,300,000  267,423 
[b] Deferred Tax liabiliƟes (net) 5  804,600  7,352,100 
[c] Other Long Term LiabiliƟes 6  5,202,920  202,920 
[d] Long Term Provision 7  578,807 126,886,327  787,131  8,609,574 

(4) Current LiabiliƟes
[a] Short Term Borrowing 8  2,281,691 136,905,595 
[b] Trade Payable 9  902,899  12,992,592 
[c] Other Current LiabiliƟes 10  33,621,332  28,526,410 
[d] Short Term Provision 11  503,171 37,309,093  549,740 178,974,337 
TOTAL 513,520,353 551,550,690

II. ASSETS
(1) Non Current Assets

[a] Fixed Assets 12
(i) Tangible Assets 101,946,194 113,789,516
(ii) Intangible Assets  62,140  178,282 
(iii) Capital work in progress  20,801,836  20,801,836 

122,810,170 134,769,634 
[b] Non-current Investments 13  380,100  100,000 
[c] Long Term Loan & Advances 14 33,493,771  29,713,771 
[d] Other Non Current Assets 15  770,962  157,455,003  1,014,370 165,597,775 

(2) Current Assets
[a] Inventories 16 174,014,685 220,484,174 
[b] Trade Receivable 17 122,309,594 106,231,822 
[c] Cash & Cash Equivalent 18  2,671,517  5,947,736 
[d] Short Term Loans & Advances 19  47,463,252  44,374,006 
[e] Other Current Assets 20  9,606,302  356,065,350  8,915,177 385,952,915 
TOTAL 513,520,353 551,550,690 

III. Significant AccounƟng Policies 1

Notes referred to  above form an integral part of the Financial Statements 
Signed in terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For AGARWAL KHEMKA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants  Prashant Tulsyan 
(A. K. Agarwal)  (Whole Time Director) 
Proprietor 
Place : Kolkata Alok Sawa
Dated : This 30th day of May, 2015 (Director)
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015

ParƟculars Note No.
 Current Year 
Amount(`) 

 Previous Year 
Amount(`)

A REVENUE
Sale of Products and Services 21  178,391,932  197,355,332 
Other OperaƟng Revenues 22  1,465,423  1,240,422 
Less: Excise Duty  7,198,764  9,056,362 

Revenue From OperaƟon (net)  172,658,591  189,539,392 
Other Income 23  871,363  122,343 

Total revenue (I)  173,529,954  189,661,735 
B EXPENSES

(a) Cost of raw materials consumed / sold 24  117,155,675  87,053,905 
(b) Purchases of Stock-in-trade 25  8,591,613  4,005,818 
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods 26  2,364,514  47,262,513 

and stock-in-trade
(d) Transfer of Finish Goods to Raw Material  -    (12,502,214)
(e) Employee benefits expense 27  5,907,015  7,658,160 
(f) Finance costs 28  18,329,511  18,579,589 
(g) DepreciaƟon (refer Note No. 1.7) 12  5,210,571  6,218,930 
(h) Other Expenses 29  30,383,468  31,056,225 

Total expenses (II)  187,942,367  189,332,926 
Profit before Tax (I-II)  (14,412,413)  328,809 
Tax Expenses :
(a) Current tax expense for current year  -    875,000 
(b) Current Tax expense relaƟng to prior years  -    -   
(c) Deferred tax  (6,547,500)  (733,800)

Total Tax Expenses  (6,547,500)  141,200 
Profit/(Loss) for the year (5-6)  (7,864,913)  187,609 
Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value ` 10/- each) 30
Basic (`)  (1.24)  0.03 
Diluted (`)  (1.24)  0.03 
Significant AccounƟng policies 1

Notes referred to  above form an integral part of the Financial Statements 
Signed in terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For AGARWAL KHEMKA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants  Prashant Tulsyan 
(A. K. Agarwal)  (Whole Time Director) 
Proprietor 
Place : Kolkata Alok Sawa
Dated : This 30th day of May, 2015 (Director)
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Cash Flow Statement  for the year ended 31st March, 2015

2014-2015
`

2013-2014
`

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before Tax and Extraordinary Items (14,412,413) 328,809 
Adjustments for :

DepreciaƟon 5,210,571 6,218,930 
Interest  (Net) 17,458,148 18,457,246 
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Assets  -   

OperaƟng Profit before Working Capital Changes 8,256,306 25,004,985 
Adjustments for :

Trade and Other Receivables (10,480,509) 1,723,045 
Inventories  46,469,489  45,175,242 
Trade Payables  (9,656,979)  (4,411,851)
Cash Generated from OperaƟons 34,588,307 67,491,421 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net)  -  (875,000)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 34,588,307 66,616,421 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets/Capital  (3,808,040)  (5,800,899)

Advances/Capital Expenditure
Loans and Advances Given (9,134,226) (8,810,109)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (Net)  -   
Dividend Earned  -    -   
Interest Earned 871,363 122,343 
Proceeds from sale of Investments  (280,100)  -   
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (12,351,003)  (14,488,665)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital/Share allotment money (net)  -    -   
Interest Paid  (18,329,511)  (18,579,589)
Increase in Term Loans  127,857,955  - 
Increase in H.P Loans (418,063) (481,400)
Increase in Cash Credit  (120,311,478)  2,245,634 
Increase in Unsecured Loans  (14,312,426)  (34,857,099)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (25,513,523) (51,672,454)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 5,947,736 5,492,434 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)
(Cash and Cash Equivalents represent Cash and Bank Balances)

2,671,517 5,947,736 

Signed in terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For AGARWAL KHEMKA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants  Prashant Tulsyan 
(A. K. Agarwal)  (Whole Time Director) 
Proprietor 
Place : Kolkata Alok Sawa
Dated : This 30th day of May, 2015 (Director)

Notes: 1. Figures in brackets aŌer “operaƟng profit before working capital changes” represent cash ouƞlows.
 2. Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in AccounƟng Standard - 3.
 3. Previous year’s figures regrouped / reconsidered whereever appropriate to make them comparable.
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GENERAL INFORMATION :

Auroma Coke Limited (the “Company”) is engaged primarily in washing of raw coal and slurry and manufacture of Wash Coal, 
Middlings, Slurry, Hard Coke and its various combinaƟons. It is also engaged in trading of above products including coal. The 
manufacturing plants are located in India. The Company is a public limited company and its shares are listed on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE).

NOTE No.  1
[1.1] Significant AccounƟng Policies 
 (a) AccounƟng Concept
  The company generally follows the mercanƟle system of accounƟng and recognises revenue on accrual basis, 

except sale of scrap and insignificant items/amounts, which are accounted for on cash basis. The accounts are 
prepared and presented as a going concern concept in accordance with Generally Accepted AccounƟng Principles 
(GAAP) in India under historical cost convenƟon and comply in all material aspects with the AccounƟng Standards 
(AS) and the relevant provisions prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. The accounƟng policies not referred to 
otherwise are consistent with generally accepted accounƟng principles

 (b) Use of EsƟmates
  The preparaƟon of financial statements requires esƟmates and assumpƟons to be made that affect the reported 

amount of assets and liabiliƟes on the date of the financial statements and reported amount of revenues and 
expenses during the reporƟng period. Although these esƟmates are based on the management’s best knowledge 
of current events and acƟons, the actual outcome may be different from the esƟmates. Difference between actual 
results and esƟmates are recognised in the period in which the results are known or materialise.

 (c) Fixed Assets  
  Fixed Assets (Tangible and Intangible) are stated at cost of acquisiƟon inclusive of inward freight, duƟes, taxes and 

incidental expenses related to acquisiƟon and installaƟon. In respect of major projects involving construcƟon, 
related pre-operaƟve expenses, including finance cost on borrowed funds aƩributable to acquisiƟon of fixed assets 
for the period upto the date of commencement of commercial producƟon is capitalised. In case of revaluaƟon, 
acquisiƟon cost is replaced with revalued figures.

 (d) Impairment of Assets
  Loss / gain on impairment of assets is recognised in accounts aŌer reviewing net selling price / value in use and 

net carrying amount of individual assets ( if independently generaƟng cash flow) and cash generaƟng units at each 
Balance Sheet date.

 (e) ClassificaƟon of Assets and LiabiliƟes as Current and Non-Current
  All assets and liabiliƟes are classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operaƟng cycle and 

other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the Ɵme 
between acquisiƟon of assets for processing and their realisaƟon in cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has 
been considered by the company for the purpose of current – non-current classificaƟon of assets and liabiliƟes.

 (f) Investments 
  Investments are classified as current and non-current. Current investments are those investments which are 

readily realisable, and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date of investment. All other 
investments are classified as long-term investments.

  Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value determined.
  Long term investments are stated at cost less permanent diminuƟon in value of such investments.
 (g) DepreciaƟon 
  DepreciaƟon on fixed assets is provided under straight line method at the rates and in the manner prescribed 

under the Companies Act, 2013. Assets acquired / disposed off during the year are depreciated with reference 
to the month of addiƟon / disposal. Assets under construcƟon / installaƟon are not depreciated. Assets used 
during construcƟon of the project are depreciated and such depreciaƟon forms part of the pre-operaƟve cost. 
Annual depreciaƟon on wriƩen up value due to revaluaƟon of assets is charged to revaluaƟon reserve account 
proporƟonately to the extent of balance held in the account.

 (h) ReƟrement Benefits
  The company is not covered by Employee’s Provident Fund Act and there is no scheme of Provident fund in vogue. 

Liability for gratuity is provided on actual basis, computed on the tenure of the service of the eligible employees 
as at the end of the year, in terms of paragraph 52 of AccounƟng Standard – 15 ( Revised) issued by The InsƟtute 
of Chartered Accountants of India, in view of few numbers of employees eligible for gratuity at present.  

 (i) Inventories 
  Raw materials are valued at lower of yearly weighted average cost (including related acquisiƟon cost) or market 

prices. Cost of interdivisional transfer of goods has been taken as per policy enumerated in paragraph (l) below. 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015
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Stock of such material, and consequenƟal finished goods at balance sheet date, are valued taking the said transfer 
price and any unrealised profit on such transacƟon is eliminated while valuing the stock. 

  Rejects, Middling, Slurry are valued at esƟmated realisable value. Other finished goods are valued at lower of 
weighted average cost or market / esƟmated realisable value. Cost includes material cost, labour and appropriate 
systemaƟc allocaƟon of fixed and variable producƟon overheads on actual basis, based on esƟmated producƟon 
faciliƟes used by different divisions.

  Stock in transit, spares and stores etc. are valued at actual cost of purchase including related expenses. Scrap, 
being not material in amount, is not accounted for.

 (j) Proposed Dividend
  Dividend as proposed by the directors is provided in the books of account, pending approval at the Annual General 

MeeƟng.
 (k) Foreign Exchange TransacƟons
  Foreign exchange transacƟons are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transacƟon. 

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated at the exchange rate prevailing at the Balance sheet 
date. In case of transacƟons covered by forward contract, they are restated at that rate and premium, if any, is 
allocated over the tenure of credit.

 (l) Inter-Division transfer
  Inter-divisional transfer of goods as independent marketable products of separate divisions for capƟve 

consumpƟon are assigned value at lower of cost of producƟon (wherever feasible) and esƟmated net realizable 
value. This accounƟng treatment has no impact on the profit of the company. Such transacƟons are neither 
included in turnover nor in consumpƟon of materials, except for valuaƟon purposes.  

 (m) Sales 
  Sales are inclusive of all taxes, except VAT & CST, less returns. In respect of service tax the same is not included in 

turnover if collected over and above the agreed charges. 
 (n) Purchases 
  Purchases are accounted for net of MODVAT / CENVAT/VAT/ Set off of taxes as applicable.
 (o) Borrowing Costs
  Borrowing costs that are aƩributable to the acquisiƟon, construcƟon or producƟon of a qualifying asset are 

capitalised. Other borrowing costs are expensed out.
 (p) MODVAT / CENVAT/VAT/Set off of taxes
  Any set off / credit of taxes is adjusted against purchase cost of that item / goods if relates to current year. 

Adjustment of prior year is accounted for in profit & loss account separately. 
 (q) ConƟngent LiabiliƟes & Commitments
  ConƟngent liabiliƟes and commitments are not provided for and are disclosed in notes aƩached to the accounts.
 (r) Taxes on Income
        Current income tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as the amount 

of tax payable to the taxaƟon authoriƟes in respect of taxable income for the year.
  Deferred tax is accounted for under the liability method, subject to the consideraƟon of prudence for deferred 

tax assets, at the current rate of tax, on Ɵming differences being the difference between taxable income and 
accounƟng income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

  Deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes are offset if they are governed by same taxing laws.
[1.2] ConƟngent LiabiliƟes :
 No provision has been made in respect of following conƟngent liabiliƟes:-
 (a) In respect of VAT input claimed but yet to be allowed for 2006-07 & 2007-08 ` 7.99 Lacs (` 7.99 Lacs). In respect 

of the year 2008-09, the excess demand of ` 3.86 lacs (`. 3.86 lacs) has been adjusted from the input credit and 
further input claim of ` 1.09 lacs (` 1.09 lacs) has not been allowed. For the year 2009-10 the excess demand of 
` 1.74 lacs (Rs. NIL) has been adjusted from the input credit and further input claim of ` 3.92 lacs (` NIL) has not 
been allowed. For the year 2010-11 the excess demand of ` 3.12 lacs (` NIL) has been adjusted from the input 
credit and further input claim of ` 1.84 lacs (` NIL) has not been allowed.  In all the above cases the company is in 
the process of filing revisions / appeals.

 (b) The Sales Tax Dept. has separately demanded VAT and penalty of ` 43.76 lacs for 2007-08 and ̀  2.40 lacs for 2008-
09 due to certain audit objecƟons for which revision peƟƟon has been filed with the appropriate authoriƟes.

[1.3] Commitments :
  No provision has been made in respect of following commitments :
 (a) EsƟmated value of contracts of capital nature not provided (net of advances) : ` 11.55 lacs  (` 8.55 lacs).
[1.4] ConƟngent LiabiliƟes :
 (a)  Unexpired Bank Guarantees outstanding : ` 110.62 lacs (` 110.62 lacs).

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015
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 (b) Demand from Excise Dept. for the period 1.3.11 to 31.3.11 amounƟng to Rs. NIL (` 4.50 lacs) plus interest and other 
levies. The company had deposited the tax amount demanded with the authoriƟes under protest and had also 
simultaneously filed appeal before the appropriate authoriƟes. The company has since received the appellate order 
and necessary provisions have been made in the accounts.  

[1.5] a)  The OverdraŌ facility, repayable in fixed term by variable monthly installments, is secured by hypothecaƟon of enƟre 
stocks, receivables, advance payment and other current assets, They are further secured by equitable mortgage of 
specified land of the company, personal guarantee of two directors of the company and their three relaƟves.

 (b)  The Bank Guarantee and LeƩer of Credit limits sancƟoned by bank are secured by hypothecaƟon of enƟre stocks, 
receivables, advance payment and other current assets, plant & machinery of the company.

[1.6] As per informaƟon available with the company there are no dues payable to any small scale industrial undertaking as at 
31-03-2015.

[1.7] (a)  Gross depreciaƟon for the current year is ` 52,15,061/- (` 62,24,136/-) out of which ` 4,490/- (` 5,206/-) has been 
transferred to revaluaƟon reserve.

 (b) The difference, amounƟng to ` 67,72,443/- (NIL), between residual value and carrying amount of assets where the 
remaining useful life of an asset has become NIL as per The Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule II, has been 
recognised in the opening balance of Profit & Loss Account ̀  67,71,470/- (NIL) and ̀  973/- (NIL) has been transferred 
to revaluaƟon reserve.

[1.8]  The amount payable to micro, small and medium enterprises, to the extent idenƟfied on the basis of informaƟon available, 
are as follow:-

 (a)  Principal amount outstanding as on 31-03-2015 : `  NIL (NIL)
 (b)  Interest due on outstanding amount as on 31-03-2015 : ` NIL (` Nil)
 (c)  Interest paid during the year : ` NIL (` Nil)
 (d)  Interest due and payable for the delay in making   
                  payment beyond the due date of payment  : ` NIL (` Nil) 
 (No payment made beyond due date to SME sector, wherever they were sƟpulated)
[1.9]  Balance confirmaƟon cerƟficate in respect of sundry parƟes has not been received from the parƟes in some cases.
[1.10] Advances received for allotment of equity shares are proposed to be alloƩed at a price band of ` 18/- to ̀  30/- per share, 

inclusive of appropriate premium per share depending on the then issue price, ranking pari-passu with the exisƟng 
shares of the company.

[1.11] In respect of advance against allotment money received from two applicants amounƟng to ` 1435.00 lacs, a scheme 
of merger and amalgamaƟon proposal of those two companies with the company is under process and approved by 
BSE, subject to further steps like sancƟon of respecƟve schemes by Hon’ble High Court aŌer obtaining or extending all 
the required approvals. Pending such sancƟon and approval, the amount has been kept as advance against allotment, 
which would be nullified upon such sancƟon of merger scheme and simultaneous issue of fresh equity shares to the 
shareholders of those amalgamaƟng companies.

 In respect of balance amount of advance received against allotment of shares, as agreed upon at the Ɵme of acceptance, 
it is proposed that the shares shall be alloƩed before 31.3.2016, subject to required statutory approvals. 

 It is proposed to increase the required authorised capital resulƟng from allotment, if made, of the advance money so 
received or to the shareholders of the amalgamaƟng companies, before the allotment process takes place.

[1.12] CBI has filed a case under various secƟons of Indian Penal Code alleging diversion of certain coal out of coal purchased 
by the company under Fuel Supply Agreement from BCCL during the period between 2008 to 2011, causing loss of 
approx. Rs. 1.35 crores to BCCL (a PSU). Consequent to filing of FIR by CBI on 22.06.2011, the BCCL (the main supplier 
of raw material to the company) has arbitrarily suspended supply of coal under FSA to the company w.e.f 24.06.2011 
Ɵll the maƩer is decided, which has been challenged by the company before the Hon’ble High Court at Kolkata. Due 
to suspension of coal supply under FSA by BCCL, the workings of the company has been severely affected causing 
unprecedented losses to the company and also affecƟng its profitability in future Ɵll the suspension of supply under 
FSA is liŌed. However, based on merits of the case the company has been legally advised that in the above maƩers the 
judgment is expected to be in company’s favour.

[1.13] AddiƟonal informaƟon details.  (These informaƟon have been cerƟfied by the management and relied upon by the 
auditors):-

 (A) Total value of Raw Materials, Stores, Spare Parts and Components consumed/sold:
  (i) Raw Materials (including sold):

2014 -15          2013-14
      Value (`)    %          Value (`)    %    

Indigenous 11,71,55,675 100 %    8,70,53,905 100 %
Imported NIL NIL NIL NIL

11,71,55,675 100 %    8,70,53,905 100 %
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  (ii) Stores, Spare Parts and Components :
   The company did not consume any imported stores materials, spare parts, components  and Chemicals. All 

consumpƟons were indigenous. 
  Notes :
  (1) ConsumpƟon of raw material includes sales also as it is not pracƟcal to idenƟfy separately the cost of material 

sold.
  (2) The quanƟty of consumpƟon of raw coal, slurry etc. is accounted for on esƟmated basis as per pracƟce and 

convenƟon prevailing in the industry. 
 (B) Earning in foreign currency: NIL (NIL)
 (C) Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis) : 
 (i) For Bank Interest : ` Rs. NIL (` 39,67,318/-)
 (ii) For Bank Charges : ` NIL (` 37,29,375/-)
[1.14]  Related party transacƟons :-
 The company has idenƟfied all related parƟes and details of transacƟons are given below. No amounts  have been 

wriƩen off or wriƩen back during the year in respect of debts due from or to related parƟes.
 (a)  Name of Key management personnel
  (1)    Mr. Rajiv Tulsyan (upto 26.8.2014)
  (2)    Mr. Sanjeev K. Tulsyan (upto 26.8.2014)
  (3)    Mr. Prashant Tulsyan
 (b)  Name of associates / companies :
  (1) ACM Fuels Ltd.
  (2) Smart Dealers Pvt. Ltd.
  (3) A C M Finvests Pvt. Ltd. 
 (c)  RelaƟves of key management 
  (1) Mr. Rajiv Tulsyan (w.e.f. 26.8.2014)
  (2) Mr. Sanjeev K. Tulsyan (w.e.f. 26.8.2014)
  (3) Mrs. Vibha Tulsyan (w.e.f. 20.11.2014)
 (` In lacs)

Nature of TransacƟon Associates Key 
Management 

Personnel

RelaƟves of Key  
Management 

Personnel

Total Closing Balance at the 
end of the year

Purchase of goods (A C M Fuels Ltd.) 177.60
(186.77)

–
 ( – )

–
 ( – )

177.60
(186.77)

3.37 (Cr.)
(100.03) (Cr.)

Sale of goods (A C M Fuels Ltd.) 5.76
(34.50)

–
 ( – )

–
 ( – )

5.76
(34.50)

3.18 (Dr.)
(8.78)  (Dr.)

Receiving of services (Excluding siƫng 
fees)

13.52
(8.65)

15.72
(25.70)

–
 ( – )

29.24
(34.35)

24.30 (Cr.)
(24.52) (Cr.)

Providing of Rental services 1.26
(1.26)

–
 ( – )

–
 ( – )

1.26
(1.26)

–
 ( – )

Interest Income 6.46
(1.22)

–
 ( – )

–
 ( – )

6.46
(1.22)

–
 ( – )

Interest Paid 5.00
(13.87)

–
 ( – )

–
 ( – )

5.00
(13.87)

–
 ( – )

Finance (including loans and Equity 
contribuƟons in cash)

122.65
(258.55)

–
 ( – )

–
 ( – )

122.65
(258.55)

22.77 (Cr.)
(121.11) (Cr.)

Finance Provided / Refunded 159.31
(453.62)

–
 ( – )

–
 ( – )

159.31
(453.62)

30.05 (Dr.)
(90.74) (Dr.)

Guarantees taken –
(3700.00)

–
 ( – )

–
 ( – )

–
(3700.00)

–
 ( – )

[1.15]  The Company has reviewed its individual assets and cash generaƟng units for impairment in terms of AccounƟng Standard 
– 28 issued by The InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India, and none of them were found to be materially impaired.  

[1.16] The company has idenƟfied that it has no reportable segments. 
[1.17]  Previous year’s figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever appropriate and have been indicated in brackets.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015

 As at 31st 
March, 2015 (`)

  As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`)

NOTE - 2 SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED :
90,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  90,000,000  90,000,000 
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid :
63,18,900 (63,18,900) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  63,189,000  63,189,000 
Add: Shares Forfeited (amount originally paid up) 3,062,500 3,062,500

 66,251,500  66,251,500 

2.1 ReconcilliaƟon of the Number of Equity Shares Outstanding

Number of Shares

Current Year  Previous Year 

Outstanding as at the beginning of the year  6,318,900  6,318,900

Outstanding as at the end of the year  6,318,900  6,318,900 

2.2 List of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares
 in the Equity Share Capital of the Company :

 Zebra Commercial Pvt. Ltd.  360,000  360,000

2.3 The company has only one class of shares i.e. equity shares. Each equity share is enƟtled to dividend 
as proposed by the Board of Directors. Every share is having one vote. In case of winding up, the share 
holder is enƟtled to distribuƟon in equal proporƟon of balance remaining aŌer payment to all creditors.

 As at 31st 
March, 2015 (`)

  As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`)

NOTE - 3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(a) RevaluaƟon Reserve

Opening Balance  287,069  292,275 
Add: Transfer during the year  –    –   
Less: Adjustment for DepreciaƟon  5,463  5,206 

 281,606  287,069 
(b) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Opening Balance  45,028,210  44,840,601 
Add: Profit for the year  –    187,609 
Less : DepreciaƟon amorƟsed (Refer Note No. 1.7.b) (6,771,470)  –   
             Loss for the year  (7,864,913)  –   
Closing balance  30,391,827  45,028,210 

 30,673,433  45,315,279 
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 As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`)

  As at 31st 
March, 2013 (`)

NOTE – 4  LONG–TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
Term Loan :
From  Banks
     (a) OverdraŌ facility repayable in fixed period  120,300,000  –   
           (Refer Note No. 1.5)
     (b) Vehicle Loan [Secured by hypothecaƟon of Car]  –    267,423 

     Total  120,300,000  267,423 

Current Year Previous Year
 Current Non–current   Current Non–current

4.1 Repayment Terms
Secured Long Term Borrowings:
From Banks
  Repayable in 96 EMI from January, 2015  7,557,955  120,300,000  –    –   
  Repayable in 36 EMI from November, 2012  267,423  –    418,063  267,423 
Total  7,825,378  120,300,000  418,063  267,423 

 As at 31st 
March, 2015 (`)

  As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`)

NOTE – 5  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)
(A) LiabiliƟes due to Timing difference :

DepreciaƟon  5,141,800  7,802,000 
 5,141,800  7,802,000 

(B) Assets due to Timing difference :
Losses and DepreciaƟon Allowances  3,959,800  –   
Revenue Expenses  377,400  449,900 

 4,337,200  449,900 
(C) Net liability (A–B)  804,600  7,352,100 

NOTE – 6  OTHER LONG–TERM LIABILITIES
Other LiabiliƟes  5,202,920  202,920 

 5,202,920  202,920 
NOTE – 7  LONG–TERM PROVISIONS

For Employee Benefits  578,807  787,131 
 578,807  787,131 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015
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 As at 31st 
March, 2015 (`)

  As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`)

NOTE - 8 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
Working Capital Borrowings repayable on demand
From Banks – 120,311,478
(Secured against hypothecaƟon of enƟre 
inventory, receivables and other current 
assets. They are further secured by present 
and future fixed assets of the company 
including equitable mortgage of land 
and building, landed property, personal 
guarantee of four directors of the company 
and corporate guarantee of 3 companies.)

Unsecured
(Includes interest accrued and added to principal)
From related parƟes  2,227,498  12,110,929 
Other Loans  54,193  2,281,691  4,483,188  16,594,117 

 2,281,691 136,905,595 

 As at 31st 
March, 2015 (`)

  As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`)

NOTE - 9  TRADE PAYABLES
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises  -    -   
Others  902,899  12,992,592 

 902,899  12,992,592 
NOTE - 10  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturiƟes of long term borrowings (Note No. 4.1)  7,825,378  418,063 
Interest accrued but not due on loans  2,112  5,817 
Interest accrued and due on loans  62,439  62,439 
Deposits (Trade Deposits)  253,743  253,743 
Payable for Capital Goods  1,003,445  1,503,445 
Advances from Customers  16,703,310  17,138,326 
Advance Interest Received  144,780  2,159 
Other Payables (including Statutory Dues, etc.)  7,626,125  9,142,418 

 33,621,332  28,526,410 
NOTE - 11 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

For Employee Benefits  503,171  549,740 
 503,171  549,740 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015
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 As at 31st 
March, 2015 (`)

  As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`)

NOTE - 13  NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT (at Cost)
(a)  Investments other than Trade investments in Mutual 
      Funds :

Unquoted: Face Value Total Nos.
SBI Infrastruture Fund ` 10 1000  100,000  100,000 

(b)  Others : Gold  280,100  –   

 380,100  100,000 
NOTE - 14 LONG-TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Capital Advances for Purchase of Fixed Assets 22,311,456 18,531,456
Security Deposits 11,182,315 11,182,315

 33,493,771  29,713,771 
NOTE - 15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid Expenses  206,739  –   
Others  564,223  1,014,370 

 770,962  1,014,370 
NOTE - 16 INVENTORIES

(Valued at lower of cost or esƟmated net realisable value, 
unless otherwise stated)
Raw Materials  122,669,519  166,773,618 
{includes in transit Rs.63,557/-  (Previous Year Rs. 63,557/-)}
Finished Goods  50,533,195  52,898,585 
Loose Tools, Consumables & Spares  811,971  811,971 

 174,014,685  220,484,174 
NOTE - 17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured, considered good, unless other wise stated)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date 
they are due for payment

 32,759,501  53,206,441 

Others  89,550,093  53,025,381 

 122,309,594  106,231,822 
NOTE - 18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand (as per books & cerƟfied)  498,246  448,863 
Balances with banks
(i) In Current Accounts  132,187  252,418 
(ii) In Fixed Deposit Account held as margin money
      for guarantees issued

 2,017,584  5,222,955 

(iii) In Margin Money A/c for guarantees issued  23,500  23,500 

 2,671,517  5,947,736 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015
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 As at 31st 
March, 2015 (`)

  As at 31st 
March, 2014 (`)

NOTE - 19 SHORT-TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Loans & Advances
(a) To Related ParƟes 

(To A C M Fuels Ltd.)
 3,005,200  9,074,028

(b) To Other  15,203,054  -   
Security Deposits  38,480  3,039,675 
Others

Advances to suppliers of Materials  26,666,249  30,215,114 
Prepaid Expenses  652,971  442,276 
Other Advances  1,897,298  1,602,913 

 47,463,252  44,374,006 
NOTE - 20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

VAT Receivable  7,563,585  7,756,661 
CENVAT Receivable  219,652  275,066 
Balance with Revenue authoriƟes  1  308,966 
Interest Receivable  175,054  87,703 
Advance Income Tax & TDS (Net of provisions)  1,498,748  337,519 
Others  149,262  149,262 

 9,606,302  8,915,177 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2015 

(`)

 For the year ended  
31st March, 2014 

(`)

NOTE - 21 SALE OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Sale of Products  178,391,932  197,355,332 

 178,391,932  197,355,332 
NOTE - 22 OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

Weightment Charges  125,810  254,520 
Rent  126,000  126,000 
Interest Earned from Bank on Margin Money and Trade Receivables  1,213,613  859,902 

 1,465,423  1,240,422 
NOTE - 23 OTHER INCOME

Interest Earned on loans & advances  871,363  122,343 
 871,363  122,343 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015

For the year ended 
31st March, 2015 

(`)

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2014 

(`)

NOTE - 24 COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED/SOLD
Opening Stock                 166,773,618  163,286,959 
Purchases and Incidental Expenses  70,779,512  73,577,857 
TransportaƟon Charges  2,272,064  4,460,493 
Transfer of Finished Goods to Raw Material  -    12,502,214 

 239,825,194  253,827,523 
Less : Closing Stock     122,669,519  166,773,618 

 117,155,675  87,053,905 
  Material consumed comprises :
  Coal  117,155,675  87,053,905 

24.1 Excluding esƟmated value of finished goods used for capƟve 
consumpƟon

NOTE - 25 PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Hard Coke & Coke Dust  6,669,189  1,330,146 
Slurry  828,723  1,221,201 
Coal  1,093,701  1,454,471 

 8,591,613  4,005,818 
NOTE - 26 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF
                   FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

(a) Inventories at the end of the year
      Finished Goods & Stock in Trade  50,533,195  52,898,585 
(b) Inventory at the beginning of the year
      Finished Goods & Stock in Trade  52,898,585  100,913,694 
 (Increase) / Decrease in Stocks  2,365,390  48,015,109 
 Less : (Increase) / Decrease in Excise Duty on Stocks  876  752,596 

 2,364,514  47,262,513 
NOTE - 27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Wages  1,094,939  1,439,618 
Salaries  4,189,314  5,438,481 
Bonus  336,298  144,173 
ContribuƟon  to ESI  17,410  22,099 
Gratuity  24,037  262,083 
Leave Wages & Salary  172,200  240,949 
Staff & Labour welfare  72,817  110,757 

 5,907,015  7,658,160 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  for the year ended 31st March, 2015

For the year ended 
31st March, 2015 

(`)

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2014 

(`)
NOTE - 28 FINANCE COSTS

Interest on Fixed Period Loans  4,880,731  4,075,333 
Other Interest  13,448,780  10,774,881 
Other Financing Costs  –    3,729,375 

 18,329,511  18,579,589 
NOTE - 29 OTHER EXPENSES

Chemical Consumed  94,002  140,001 
Payloader Running & Maint. Exp.  511,291  824,590 
Dumper/Tractor Running & Maint. Expenses  342,764  1,238,042 
Coke Breaking & Sizing Expenses  2,316,000  893,000 
Stores Consumed  323,223  438,123 
Iron Materials ( net of scrap sales)  845,611  1,193,188 
Generator Running & Maintenance Expenses  196,033  703,493 
Power Charges  2,984,616  3,200,322 
Insurance Premium  127,515  249,095 
AdverƟsement  49,592  365,136 
Bank Charges  1,494,970  991,677 
Quality Rebate & Discount allowed  4,247,874  5,911,835 
Repairs & Maintenance
   a) To Machineries  446,388  834,462 
   b) To Building  6,150  20,505 
   c) To Others  75,682  119,154 
Legal & Professional Charges  3,385,900  558,680 
Rent  96,000  100,000 
Rates  & Taxes  35,599  35,009 
Sundry Balances wriƩen off (Net)  121,909  -   
Miscellaneous Expenses  3,552,735  4,844,406 
Outward TransporƟng  8,802,487  8,301,383 
Prior Period Adjustments (Net)  297,127  64,124 
Auditors' remuneraƟon:
Audit Fees  25,000  25,000 
Tax Audit Fees  5,000  5,000 

 30,383,468  31,056,225 
NOTE - 30 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net Profit for the year from ordinary acƟviƟes aƩributable to
Equity Shareholders

 (7,864,913)  187,609 

Weighted-average-number of Equity Shares Outstanding  6,318,900  6,318,900 
Basic Earnings Per Share (Face Value ` 10 each)  (1.24)  0.03 
Diluted Earning Per Share (Face Value of ` 10 each)  (1.24)  0.03 





If undelivered, please return to :

AUROMA COKE LIMITED
Shanti Niketan Building, Suite no. 706
8, Camac Street, Kolkata - 700017
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